
Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

1 

 

MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:30 p.m. on 
Wednesday, February 15, 2023.  
 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
 
Present:  Chair George Dunlap and Commissioners  

Leigh Altman, Patricia “Pat” Cotham, Arthur Griffin, 
Mark Jerrell, Vilma D. Leake, Laura J Meier, Elaine Powell,  
and Susan Rodriguez-McDowell 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 

 
Absent:  Commissioner Laura Meier 

County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
   Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Dunlap at 2:32 p.m., followed by introductions and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
  
23-0108  COVID-19 RECOVERY AND RENEWAL TASK FORCE UPDATE 
 
The Board received updates on the recovery and renewal task force implementation plan for 
recommendations. 
 
Background:  In October 2020, the Mecklenburg Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) 
appointed the COVID-19 Recovery and Renewal Task Force to identify recommendations on the 
County's response to the pandemic. Over approximately a year, the Task Force developed 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

2 

 

recommendations that included three focus areas - Health, Economy, and Community - 
supported by 13 strategies and 60 actions. In September 2021, the BOCC approved the Task 
Force recommendations. Subsequent direction by the BOCC included accountability for the 
County Manager to determine a process for implementing and tracking progress on the actions. 
The presentation highlights current and recent work for two focus areas - Economy and 
Community. A second presentation, tentatively scheduled for March 14 to the BOCC, only 
includes an update on the Health focus area. 
 
Monica R. Allen, PhD, Director for Strategic Planning & Evaluation, gave the presentation. 
  
 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

3 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

4 

 

 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

5 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

6 

 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

7 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

8 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

9 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

10 

 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

11 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

12 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Chair Dunlap said the purpose of the task force was to make sure the community recovered as 
a result of COVID-19. 
 
Commissioner Leake discussed the food desert, she stated that this initiative would be a 
tremendous step forward, and thanked Dr. Allen for her leadership, her staff, and the task force 
for all their work.  She thanked the Board for its efforts to change the lives of the people in 
District 2. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked about the Smart Goals and asked with regard to the 17 additional 
farmers' markets that accept EBT cards if they looked at the actual food stamp recipients that 
were utilizing farmers' markets.  
 
Commissioner Griffin asked if there were specific census tracks for those six parks with Wi-Fi 
and do they relate to the disparity of people not being able to have access to Wi-Fi services. Dr. 
Allen reported that specific strategies are broken down within departmental strategic business 
plans and the departments put the actions into the plans. She said when they report out, they 
can get greater insight into the impact and what the specific goals were.  She said a lot of the 
work that was already being done was just enhanced with the task force recommendations.  She 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

13 

 

said the six County parks were in the Federal qualified census tracks and those were very specific 
zip codes and could provide the information at a later date along with the SNAP benefit 
participation information.   
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked how they were following up with the task force and if there was still 
a working group communicating with them.  Dr. Allen said that when the task force was 
established the goal was to create recommendations and not continue to work as a task force, 
however the County Manager committed to keeping them updated on what was going on.  She 
said they received today’s presentation and would continue to be updated as they would stay in 
communication.    
 
Commissioner Jerrell asked how they were going to approach the measurement of the impact.  
He said when the specific investment in a category was looked at, what had the cumulative 
impact been.  Dr. Allen said it would be an evaluation focused on task force recommendations 
specifically and working with the finance department on the ARPA investments because they 
wanted to tie ARPA money to the task force actions. 
 
Commissioner Cotham asked about quantifiable results.  She asked that the report have a little 
more detail.  Dr. Allen reported that the impacts may not be fully known until Year Two as they 
had to get the money into the community and find the people who needed to be served, serve 
them, and then impact.  
 
Chair Dunlap said while some of the ideas were tied to money, the purpose of the task force 
was to make sure that there was business recovery and that the community recovered as a 
result of the issues that occurred due to Covid.  He said some ideas that would be implemented 
had no ties to ARPA dollars or Cares Act dollars. 
 
 
23-0117 BOARD OF HEALTH ORIENTATION AND UPDATES 
 
The Board received information from the Public Health Director to provide the required Board 
of Health orientation and present updates on the Community Health Assessment and proposed 
Board of Health rule changes. 
  
Raynard Washington, PhD, MPH, Health Director, made the presentation. 
  
Background:     Public Health orientation and updates are required by the NC Consolidated 
Agreement and NC Accreditation Standards for all new and continuing Board of County 
Commission members. 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

14 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

15 

 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

16 

 

 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

17 

 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

18 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

19 

 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

20 

 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

21 

 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

22 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

23 

 

 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

24 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

25 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

26 

 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

27 

 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

28 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

29 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

30 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

31 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

32 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

33 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

34 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

35 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

36 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

37 

 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

38 

 

 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

39 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Powell asked if there was a change in the way the community health assessment 
was prioritized.  Dr. Washington said they slightly changed the way they approached it with the 
questions they asked but not with the plan.    
 
Commissioner Powell asked to hear stronger recommendations concerning STDs. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked to see the previous County Health Assessment with the caveat of 
COVID-19 interference.  He asked what the schedule was for accreditation.   Kristen Ryder, 
Compliance Coordinator, said it was four years but this time it was 6 years because of COVID.  
She said our last one was 2019 and the next one is winter of 2025. 
 
Commissioner Griffin said the County Health Rankings Model stated that 20% of health is 
clinical, going to the doctor and primary care, and 80% is education, environment, and income.   
 
Commissioner Leake thanked him and asked how this report could be disseminated to the 
general public.  She talked about violence in the community and across the country and bullying 
in schools.  She asked how to get around the process of anger and not knowing how to exhibit 
it.  She asked how definitions based on culture could be disseminated.  Dr. Washington said 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

40 

 

they were in the process of designing several products to go along with the assessment, one 
being a community version so that people could understand the data in layman's terms and 
would come back to the Board which will begin their dissemination plan and planning process to 
find out what kind of strategies would support the priorities that were identified.  He said 
concerning violence prevention, there were several initiatives aimed at reducing violence in both 
the community and in schools. He said there was a team of violence interrupters in District 2 
who were working every day to disrupt those conflicts and build relationships.   
 
Commissioner Cotham said concerning the results of the 2022 survey, seeing the percentages, 
didn’t mean anything if there was nothing to compare it to tell if it was great. Dr. Washington 
said it was a survey of local health directors across the state.  He said the point of those slides 
was that most health directors found value in the accreditation process.   
 
Commissioner Cotham asked about the leading causes of death and unintentional injuries.  Dr. 
Washington said homicides did “bubble” to the top five but were in the top 10.   
 
Commissioner Cotham asked if Dr. Washington could give examples of unintentional injuries. 
 
Commissioner Cotham said that from 2013 to 2014 Dr. Plescia stated that the big increases in 
HIV were between ages 13-17 and over 55.  She said the numbers went down then and asked 
what happened.   
 
Commissioner Cotham asked for more details with regard to alcohol, car crashes, and 
overdoses.   
 
Commissioner Altman stated that a priority for her was that the public health work was always 
completely non-partisan and fully guided by science. She said comparing the County’s 
outcomes to other counties in the state that had an appointed public health board to see if 
there were any lessons to be learned.   
 
Commissioner Altman said it would be good to know if the rise in STIs was parallel with the 
availability of sex education in middle and high schools. 
 
Commissioner Altman asked if at a future date, they could speak to get lessons learned from 
the COVID-19 pandemic, a blueprint of what worked and what didn’t, to be prepared for the 
next pandemic.   
 
Commissioner Altman asked if the County met all the minimum requirements for accreditation.  
Dr. Washington said the County was accredited with honors, receiving the highest possible 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

41 

 

score. He said he would be happy to provide the report from the last accreditation.   It was also 
clarified that the manager evaluates the Public Health Director.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked about the 39% increase in motor vehicle deaths and 
how the County ranked nationally. Dr. Washington stated he would follow up with her with the 
information.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked about preparedness for the future. Dr. Washington 
said the County Manager had shared the after-action review that the County was doing.  He 
said Public Health is separately required to do an internal assessment of the County’s response, 
which had been completed. He said he would be glad to share a copy of that assessment. 
 
Chair Dunlap spoke about operating as a Board of Health and seeing the trend to having more 
consolidated boards of health.  He said as people learn the differences the number would 
increase.  He said Mecklenburg County was one of the first to do so. 
 
Chair Dunlap said they basically adopted the 10 priorities they had last year, and even though 
maternal health was one of those issues that had risen to the top it was not added because of 
adopting last year’s priorities. Dr. Washington stated that additional options to the ten priorities 
could be added.  He said he wanted to acknowledge that this process was done three years ago, 
and they were back doing it again and wanted people to know what happened in between the 
three years.  He said he would provide the rankings in the full report.  
 
Chair Dunlap clarified that the Board of County Commissioners sits on a number of different 
boards, i.e., the Consolidated Board of Health, the Appellate Board for taxes, and other roles.    
 
The Board received a report on the Board of Health Rules from Dr. Washington.   
 
Background: The responsibility of the Board of Health is to pass the Board of Health rules. Only 
minor and technical changes are needed to ensure alignment with state statutes. The changes 
will come during Board meetings as actions. The Board of Health rules is local regulations 
related to health. The recommendations included amending eight rules and repealing two rules.  
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

42 

 

 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

43 

 

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

44 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

45 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

46 

 

 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

47 

 

 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

48 

 

 
 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

49 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

50 

 

 
 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

51 

 

 
 
 
 

 



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

52 

 

 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Cotham asked for clarification on the pools and weekly hotels. She said she 
learned that when a hotel failed inspection they could become a weekly hotel and didn’t have 
inspections.  Commissioner Cotham talked about an incident where a hotel didn’t have 
adequate fencing and green water.  She said she contacted the health department but was told 
they couldn’t do anything about it.  Dr. Washington said the incident would be looked into.  
 
Commissioner Cotham asked about rats in low-income housing. Dr. Washington reported any 
complaints about rat infestations were looked into by Daniel Ortiz, the Environmental Health 
Director explained the process.  
 
Commissioner Altman asked if the penalty was being raised or lowered from $500. Jennifer 
Patterson, Sr. Associate Attorney for Public Health, clarified that the language referring to 
misdemeanors was replaced and that it would be up to the court if they were to pursue a 
misdemeanor charge and the court found someone guilty.  
 
Commissioner Powell asked if there was a change in the proximity in which a ground well could 
be built by a pool. Dr. Washington said there was not as it was determined that a swimming 
pool was not seen as a source of pollution to drinking water.  



Meeting Minutes 
February 15, 2023 
 

53 

 

 
Commissioner Powell asked if the Health Department could be called if there was an 
abandoned pool.  Mr. Ortiz said that a residential backyard pool would be considered an 
imminent hazard in itself if there were no barriers in place but not usually considered one if the 
water was green.   
 
 
COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell, seconded by Commissioner Altman, 
and carried unanimously (8-0) to adjourn the meeting.   
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Dunlap declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Kristine M. Smith, Clerk to the Board George Dunlap, Chairman 
 


